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y NARRATIVE SU'MARY OF THE RECORD Bace 401
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DEFENSE - KAYA - Direct | i
, “
ace } KAYA, (Ckinori, Qé;ECT EXAMINATION, y
\ by Tr. Devin.
\\____,/“"f
306133 * The accused identified exhibit 3337 as his

30634 affidavit, and after a correction verified 1t. * The
affiadvit stated that the accused was born in 1889, and
after graduvation from Tokyo Imperial Univer ity inl9ylY

30635 * he entered the Finance Ministry, becoming a civil
servant. Subsequently he was a secretary to the Japznese
*4nancial Commissioner in New York City in 1918, and was
in the Accounts Bureau in 1920; went to the Geneva Dis-

. armament Conference in 1927 and to the London Naval Cori-
ference of 1929, as an attendant to the Plenipotentilary
MAXATSUKI, In March, 1930, he became secretary Lo the
Mnance Yinister and Sectlon Ckiefl of the Accounts bBurcau.
In November, 1932, he was Chief of the Pudget and Settlewend
Section, and in May 1934 chief of the Accounts Bureau, Il
hecame Chief of the Finance Bureau in lKay, 1936, and Vice
vinister of Finance on 2 February, 1937. He was Vinister
of Pinance from 4 June 1937 to 26 ¥ay 1938, when he
resirned. In August, 1939, he was appointed President ol

10636 the Nerth China Development Company, and resigned on 105
Dctober 1941 to hecome Finance Minlster, from which post
he resiened on 19 February 1944.

Excent for the two years te served as PresI.cni
of tre Development Company, tis =ntire career ias as an
officipl of the Finance MNinistry, devoted to adminisir. W3
Tre =oal of his endeavor #as & healthy national fincnce.
Tre affidtavit stated that tre gecused Fad no connec il
¢4tk a risttist, leftist. or military eligue, nNoOr «as Ie
rember of any political party. For a short period alnc
Atvcust. 1934, KAYA joined the IRPAA, but did not knou
sFether 1t could be called a political party.

In the Ministry, much of hls time was spoak -
tFe shudy and evaluation of military and civil budsctlsz,
and he constantly tried to slash military buidgets and
nrevent them from increasing. Prevailing conditlons —.
this task difficult, but he believed he succeeded 1in
suppressinz thelir srowth.

. 30637 - » At tre Geneva and London Conferences, he =:-
erted bimself toward thelr successful conclusion. iils
effort to suppress military budgets and to conclude
441 sarmament conferences were due LO his superior's
instructions and to his personal desire to maintain 4
Fealthvy finance. lessen the burdens of the people, and
increase hores for reace.
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30638 * As to counts 1 bo 5 of the Indictiment. 3
char~ed. even il tre consniracy and plannil ) {
ssive var 41d tale place, re 383 nobt = gariy
and 'al no connecthlon, Ag to the Counts Irou 6 Lo
s+iech re was charged, of trose referring UO the lia
ITncident., kils record indicated that orior to the 4im
and Cor some time tFereafter he was no more than
Cchict ard Fad no connection with 1t, f'rom Decceon
‘s November 1932, he was not even concerred vith il
wpdsets. and alter those dates he wes concerned i
. =11{tarv budrets and exerted elforts o reduce T
Derandis Cor military hudezets inereased zreatly alt
erher 1932, and KAYA vehemently opposed the Incre:
Aemands and fourht to keep them down,

i7e had no connectlon yith any plan {or a4
10f39 azainst FIC or the soviet, * From 26 lay 1938 to 1-
Octobker., 1941, he had no connection with the Catinet
the Tripartite Pact, He became Filnance I'inister on
1937. and knew nothing about the Lukouer iao Incldent
1+s outbreak. nor had the Cabinet any plans 1In prepod
rap it. After the Incldent, the report was thatl bosis?
wrolle out due to an i11leral attack by the Chinese., |
nahinet decided %o regard the Incident as loczl an
1+ on the spot. 1% opposed sending troops f{roi
if that became fnevitable 1t sould he limitea Uc
aumber, The sending or lncrease in troops was s I}
. armv report that ~ontinued 1llegal attacks by Cni:
t~ massinz their forces in the area, SO #hen Fhe
equested an lncrease to protect Japanese lives &n
~ts the Cabinet could not help but give 1ts assent.
tes motive in dolng SO W&S to protect the srall J
OYCE *!’FI‘E.

He opposed esnecially sendlng troops IO
rop he helieved it would snread the Incldent. g
reconsideration, to NoO nvail. for the other Lud
thauskt 1t necessary. On cVeETy occasion, he ri
1imit the hudzels required lor sending troops. -
sas staunch in its pollcy to refrain from ini:
third power's rights.

The civil members of the Cabinet Jer:
informed helorehand, nor consulted about patlid
thev viewed with anxiety the spread of hostilil’
nisrilian members Were not consulted aboul thi
~nd rcceived no report about alleged atrocitics, &
anvthing about them in the press, IHe did not kno
thines had been committed,

| i g el T 7
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* He resigned as Flnance Pinister in May. 1%

hefore hostilities spread toHankow and Canton. His resig

nation was requested by KONOYE, and he was happy w0 Ce
relieved. . ‘ -

The arbi!rary confiscatlion ol Chinese enterprises,

ete.. in North China were made by the military for opersati

purposes. and the Cabinet had n connection. Althouzgh th
mrosccution had charsged that ihen he was Vice Einister 01

“4{nance from February to June, 1937, the #ive Year Ylan
3teel and a Third Plan for North China were adopted. 0k
¥new nothing about them, nor did he know about OI' wWas
nartvy to the Army Five Year Plan for Heavy Industrie
ve was Finance Ninlster from June 1937 to May 1930,

th U

yo Rg

. "

*+ Prior to becoming Finance Ninister, financic
sircles were uncertain, and he felt a difficult respons-
ihility when he assumed the post. The outbhrezlk of the
rrina Incidient increased unrest, and during lils tenure
there wes no room for preparing for a “uture war, Lh
Cabinet bad its hands full vith the China Incident anc
313 not think about znother war.

He was President of the North China levelo!
Company from August 1939 to October, 194l1. The Compari
~stzblisked in November 1938, in sccordance with laws
nassed by the Diet, which set out 1ts purpose and obj:

Tt aimed for economic cooperation with China. and was NGt

-stablisted to infringe upon third powers' economic
ests. but desired their participation 1in the economic
Arvelonment. The Company dld not infrinsze upon Chines:
rirhts. nor made any preparation toward war, nor Trecclv
Cahinet instructions to that effect. <The Company Wwas I
~ermitted to ensage 1n industry, but served as a Fin
organ., and 1ts getivity was confined to investments
lpans. It Fad no power to mobilize material wealth, 1
engage in such work., In making loans OT investments, ¢l
CompanVv was 1imited by law, and could make them only
utilitv industries, small manufacturing enterprises,

in the wholesale of coal. It was not concerned witU
spinning, tobacco, and milling industries, nor in Zc!
trnde. asriculture, banking, Or insurance.

.

+ Investments and loans Were
sino-Ja mnese joint stock companies, and ol
alde ITnvect

heeides the Development Company also made investmen
'te Company did not exerceise a monopoly ovel investn

R T AL - RSP S Sy e LAY g
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30545 "% It had no arbitrary rights, and no more power
than anv ordinary company. It almed to ad Just economic
activities in North China. It had no control over the
ecconomy., Loans and investments were subject to contracts
under wrick the company obtaining financial ald was re-
quired to obtain the Company's approval 1n certain matters
to avoid over-investment or unwarranted expansion to bring
about a sound economy in North Ckhina. The Company had no
ri~hts over any industry except those in which 1t had a
financial interest. Even these rights were limited by

. contract,

A1l major acts of the Company were mdde at tre
instruction and approval of the China AfCfairs Board, and
it was prohibited from taking any gction on its own. The
Company's accounts were mostly in the red, and government
subsidies were required to pay stockholders dividends, of
not more than six per cent per annum, MNost of the affll-
jated companies were cither in the red or made little

30646 profit, * Japanese stockholders were not ziven speclal
favors in the payment of dividends. -

3
t
|

= .
ail N

A1l funds invested by the Company 1n North China
were raised in Japan, and 1t recelived no property or
snecial rirhts from the Nortk China Political Councll, nor
was any monopolistic right eranted to anyone by the
Company., for it had no poWer to do so. The investments and

. loans handled were not large, and Wwere small compared to
those in Japan and lManchurila. -

The Company received no instructions from the
sovernment, nor on its own 4id 1t attempt to expand the
production of tre affiliated compenies, with 1941 or
trereabouts as its goal., Wrile the affiliated companies
production increased, the Development Company looked {orward
towards long-range development. IT endeavored toward a
solid expansion of tre industriles i1t was concerned with,
and as an instance, the Tatung Coal !MNlnes was producing
ten thousand tons of coal per day wken the accused resigned.

: 30647 .~ -~ % He thourht of plans for the people's weliare,

. but could not carry them out due to disorder caused by

i fipghtineg, but he was able to carry out one plan which did

) help the people. In early 1940 a famine swept the Peiping-

l Tientsin area, and he was told that importaticn of twenty
million yen of wheat flour was necessary to tide over the
erisis, but the North China Political Councll and Government
of North China did not have necessary foreign funds to buy
the flour. The accused nezotlated vitr Jazpan for twenty
million ven to buy the flour. The zovernment was then hard

[ L
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Page

30648

30649

30650

helr of the Vice-Minister of Finance OHNO. lie next
necotiated witk the Communications Ninister for trans-
portine tre flour, and although shi; bottoms were short he

succeeded in obtaining some and imported considerable
amounts of flour into North China.

pressed for foreirn money, but e managzed to obtain tke

In 1941 there were rumors that Japanese-U. S.
relatlions were getting worse, * and since he Fad harbored
a8 sincere hone for the maintenance of peace he felt bad.
He Aid not kno» anythine about the contents of the necotia-
tlions nor the policies decided on by the zovernment,

On the night of 17 October 1941. T0OJO telephoned
the a~cused to join his Cabinet as Pinance Minister.
Before renlylng, he called on TOJO, To his query as to
wrether TOJO vas declded on wapging war agcinst the U. < T
TOJO replied in the negative, stating he intended to con-
tinuve tre necotiations and exert efforts toward an amicable
set.tlement. The accused then told TOJO that trere was a
rumor that the Sunreme Commani and Cabinct 1id not always
cooperate, that unless they reacked a closer relationskin
it wouvld be a stumbling block, and asked TOJC if he
intended to do something,

* TOJO replied that ke fuv1lv understood the iCE
concern of KAYA and would work toward a closer relationshi
FAYA told TOJO that there was a ten‘ency to adopt reflor:
oollcies. Thev should forget the deology and adopt

policies in leepine 71tk the needs of the country. To this,

TOJO agreed. The accused was gulte satizfied with the
interview, but left without replyingz,

The rumor at the time yas trat the army was
especially pronounced in its attitude toward the U. Sy
and Fe was relieved to learr that T0JC planned to continue
the negotiations. He felt he should join the Cabinet and
do what-he could, and he consented. Before Joining the
Cabinet, be Fad had no relations with TOJO. but had met
rim only once, * Even after Jolining, thelr contacts were

solely official.

He dld everything in his pover to avoid wsar after
Joining the Cabinet, realizins his zoal should he the
svccessful culminatlon of the ncgotiations, but the
prevallins circumstances were mostly agzinst settlement

L }
'nki

Pe realized the necessity of working towards the orevention

of war even i1f the necotiations were not settled.

Maﬁ— Dscs . .,
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30651

JOES2

Tre first cause for a possible war was the
military pressure of Allied powers, and the second was
economic pressure, The embargo on vital materlals was a
hlow to Japan, and of all imported materials, oil was the
most critieal, Without oil, Japan could not maintain
national defense. KAYA felt that even 1f oll imports from
the U, 3, and NEI should not be renewed due to the negot-
iations Tailvre, if some other oll source coul! be found
1t conld nrevent war, He therefore suggested a plan for
manufacturine synthetic oil and a plan to buy oll from
Nortr FKarafuto, and 1f possible buy that territory.

% He realized tre difficulty of ris plans, out,
fel1t tber must do everything posslble to avold Jar.
wowever, b1ls plans were turned down as impractical., I
repalled trat of thte conditlons in the ncgotiations, he
sas in favor of equal trade opportunits in gall Pacifl
areas.

At tke Liaison Conference of 1 November 1941, a
nronosal for immedlate war Wwas broueght up, but did not
mrat witk fevor., For tre settlement of the negotiations,
ke "Fo! and "0tsu® plans were discussed., TIre conflercnce
was pnanimous that Japan srould slve in as muck as possible
t~ settle the disputes, but the Jupreme Command proposSat
njunred the conference Into extremne difficylty. "EULS
nronosal was that if by the end of Novenber the negotiatione
shnwed no possihility of settlrment. they shoull he recady
tn decide on war, and withk that In mind commencing preoara-
+ions nov was needed. The Suprene Command scated thatb
Japan Taced a crisis due to military ani gconomlic pPressures
hy the Allies, * If the negotlations remalncd unsettled
ani trin=s tent alonz as they WETE, Japan's defensive po €T
in tFe western Pacific vould declline in comparison 1%l
tte Allies, Trey aould react g critical point, and ir Ghe
vere attacled after December or {f tiere was a necesslily
of warine war in self-iefense, Japan would be soO wealk LY
tre Surreme Command could not accept responsibility for
national defense, It stated that thevy must make up thelr
rinis to decide on war before the opportune moment was
1ost. Mtk that in mind, they should declde on preparing
for war.

-

Accordine to this proposal. the failure of
necotiations meant war. Discussilons drageed on. but as
ror tre aceused it was hls deslre that they =zo along as
it was., even 1f negotlatlons remained unsettled, bub Lhers
was no way Lo bring thils about, Since the Supreme LOmmMald
yas resnonsible for defense, 1T Was not possible Jjust Tc
arnnse thls provnosal,
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30653 » Pp ~ive assent to the proposal meant making
possihilitv af war trat wvuch gr e e a8 in-a aiti H
position an? rally Toallzed dbal ~ul'fering war aoul
and they should avold it 1if posslible. Through eXper.
be knew of tre lorrors -f war. The Chilna Incident had
roing on for a lons +ime and the people WETE feeling 1ts
effects., A ar aitk tre Us S would greatly add to their
gufferinegs.
. 30654 * The Supreme Cowrmand insisted that there was A2
~rance for victory 1f yar hepan at an opportune time, = ‘
tre Navy Branch oi the supremne command predicted that -
the war drasgged On FAr over hLwo ycals 1ts ovtcome Wi
uncertain. It Was possible thuk the war wight drazg on
a loneg neriod. and 1f Japan should lose after a lon Wt
she would sufler maore than 1f she tad noli gone TO Wwul' dl
211, For thls reason the accused felb he could not thon
~iyve his assent TO the Supremne command's proposal, ald
insisted on furtrer consideration, but the supreme Colsind
replied that the matter called for immediate decision:
otherwise, it could not assume responsibillty.
The acauscd arrued agzlinst an i.mﬁ;4atc dC
and was allowed LO consider the ratter Cor ahother day,
TOGO made the same reservation, Returning home, thcC
. gecused spent 2 restless night. A decision on thc pendd
proposal was not a decislon to VQEE gar, but 1t peant it
would he bhighly prohahle 1f tF e necotiations werc npt 4o
: 30699 by tre end of November. * He came to the conclusion that
rezardless of sether the issue Was -00d or bad, circum-
stances 2id not rermit Fin to stop 1t. If he opposed it
he would have 1o resign, and 1F he resigned the effect
wonlad he unfavorahle toward settling the negotiatlions |
thus would apgersvale tlre possibility of war.
The next morning T0JO telephoned twiecc {or Q
penly. . ine sccused believed that further delay would
agpravate the issue: sSO he replied he was not OnnosSeEq o
. tre proposal, hut S n~cerely Yoped tor an amicable setiloni
The Hull note of November 26 was a big hlow
all, Japan could not accent 1tg herms, and the rorelil¢n
r rinister exnlained shere was little TOOM for U, D
reconsideration, The question Vas shether Lo coRmenct |
hostilitlies OF drift along with disputes unsettled. LLif 1
sunreme Command believel that it could not aceent Irespons
| ihi1ity for national defense 1f hostilities wersT UL he 21 :
; gt once. : |
[ |
R— — s . - — = & P

J
J .
L)
!
\




ey A P SNSRI R wu;-ﬁm:-w.n-;.v;wnn-pa,;wm;-.c;,m““ﬁ,_" , E——

WARRATIVE SUIMARY OF THE RECBRD Paze 48495
Qetober 13, 1947
BEVRNSE - KAYA - Direct

%6 * If the U. S. showed the least compromising
attitude there might be a way to continue the negotiations
éven by altering fhe "Ko" or "Otsu" plans, but the Hull
note indicated settlement, was not possible, and a decisiom

to wage war in self defense Was inevitable.

Japan was embarking on a perilous war, whether
» od or bad, and if he resigned the effect to the publie
would he preat, as it would interpret the resignation &0
mear that financially, Japan wa-= not in a position to
3 #4-ht successfully. Ylhen it comes GO national defense,
public feeling 1is especially important, and 1f the ople
1ose confildence 1t would breed uncertainty and might causé
defeat. He Was against the warl, but could not think of

inereasing Japan's dangers and felt it his duty to carry out
his reSponsibility.

The decision for warl vas decided at the Imperial
conference Of 1 December, 1941, but the hope for averting
war. though dim, Was not given up. He obtained at the
t.inison Conference the Supreme Command's agreement that

0657 * war plans would e cancelled even =fter the outbreak of
skirmishes if tre negotiations reacred a point yhere
gsettlement wWas possible.

He didn't recall that the reply tO the note of
Navember 26 was everT discussed at any Lialision oT Cabinel
meeting he attended. HE thought the matter was competently
handled DY responsible officials. While the prosecutiun
had crarged rrat 2 declaration of war Wwas iiscussed at the

privy Council meeting of R December, 1941, such a declaration

was discussed, bt it was an Immﬁrial_Rescript on the
dpelaration of war anddressed tO the people.

Operation plans yere NEVET 1igcussed at lialson
or Cabinet meetings. He Was not consulted gabout the Pearl
Harhor, or any ~ther attack, nor Was he ever informed
about such attacks bveforehand. '

1+ was his sincere jesire to avoid war, and he
aidq everything to do so, but conditlions against him were
top shron- and hils assent for war Wwas inevitable, but he
firmly nelieved they WeTeE fighting & war in self-defense.

30659 + As to the attack prior tO rormal notification
in violation of international treaty., he did not know sueh
a plan existed and could not rave stoppred 1t. Furthernore®,

the covernment had no such plans.
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30659

@ 30660

30661

He had no connection with atrocities and acts In
violation of the ruvles of land warfare. The Supreme ;
Command was an independent organ, and civilian Cabinet
mémbers were not informed beforehand or consulted on plans
and preparations for battles. Civilian Cabinet members
had no power to stop or command a battle, and had no volce
in choice of commanders. He, at least, was not even
informed of the atrocities, officially or otherwise, and
they were not mentioned in the press, nor was he informed
about foreign protests, and he was of the lmpression the
war «was fairly fought,

As to the. treatment of POWs, he was not informed,
nor consulted at Cabinet meetings or elsewhere, nor knew
of foreign protests., * He did not even dream of the 1ll-
treatment dealt POWs, nor hear rumors that they were 1ll-
treated. and the press and radio made no mention of 1t.

- He resiened from the TOJO Cabinet on 19 february,
1944, at TOJO's request., By 1945 1t became clear that
Japan was facing defeat. The sufferings of the people were
extremely painful, and he felt his political respongibility
to them. On 11 August, he learned that the government had
decided to accent the Potsdam Declaration. Feellng his
political responsibility, he made up his mind to resizn

211 marks of honor the Emperor had conferred on him and
become a plain citizen, As a private citizen he felt he
should do everythine he could for the people, * and 1f
circumstances permitted, to do hls part to prevent a bad
inflation after the war,

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. BRANNON,
Counsel for OKA and SHINADA.

The accused stated trat by the Supreme Command
he meant the General Headgquarters, consisting of the Army
and Navy General Staff, and he referred to the Chiefl of
ataff and his subordinates, but he did not include the
Navy Vinister.

He heard from Crief of the Naval Staff NAGANO at
the ILiaison Conference of 1 November- 1941, that the Navy
prédicted that a war drageing on for over two years Jould
kave an uncertain outcome. He had no recollection of
ever hearine at any Liaison Conference he attended, that
any member of the Navy advocated an attack without first
#ivineg a notice of war. '
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30662

30663

30664

30665

LUB66

30668

CROSS-EXANINATION BRY MR, VILEX.

» The accused was asked if between 26 lay 1938
and Oc ober 18, 1941, he held certain named posts. He
stated that with regard to the membership in these various
committees he believed he was a ~ember of them, bub )
membership did not mean he was an official of the govern-
ment. * He resigned {rom the first KONOYE Cabinet on 26
Yay, 1938, because he was reguested by premier KONOYE to
resign, and he Fad desired to resign even before that.
KONOYE told him that he wanted to carry out a Cabinet
reoreganization. and that the accused wWas not on particularly
cood terms with the military.

The attention of the Court was called to exkhiblt
841 and 842,

* The accused Wwas handed @ document and asked
whether he was familiar with it. He stated he had no
recollection of having seen it, but the title of it was
wartime Economic Life", while the book said that he was
its avthor. The editor Wwas his private secretary, and
* e thought 1t was edited by him on the basis of various
speeches and writines that the accused made. He had no
slear recollection of havine seen the book bhefore, and
in the "Editor's Note" in the book it was stated that
his private secretary had cathered and edited some of
the speeches and talls of the accused, and he assumed that
e Fad reproduced tre =igt of various talks made by hlm,
¥+ The date of the nublicatlon was September, 1938,

Exhibit 3338-A, the book thus identified by the
accused, entitled "Problems on Japuanese Lconomic Power!,
was a sneect «iven 26 Octiober 1937, entitled "Armed var
and the War of Eeonomy". In 1%, KAYA said that the China
Incident was actuvally a warl. Since it was a wal, military
rorce was essential and important, but ijn order to give 1t
full play they should make adeguate preparations also 1in
all spheres of thought, diplomacy, finance, and €conomy,
and one of the pre-conditions of victory is to make
adecuate preparations to zet the hetter of the other

party.

*» When war commences, the question was how zZreat
o war expenditure they could afford. The war funds now
ran Lo a considerable sum. There night be many ¥ho
joubted whetrer their resources #ere suflficient to stand
that expenditure. Evervbody thinks that the yuestion of
how much war expenditure a state can afford 1s proportional

to its ecortomic DPOWET.
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30674

30675
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| KAYA would tell them how much they could stand.
puring the Russo-Japanese war, a sum of two hlllions were
required over about two years. * There were many ays of
estimating economic power, but if he compared the fisurcs

to show the general economic situation, they would find

that bank accounts in 1903 amounted to 777 milllon yen
Grantineg that war expenditures could be defrayed at th!l
rate and that they could stand an expenditure of two billion
durine the two year Russo-Japanese war, they should come

to the conclusion that they could afford at leasat twenty
billions at present, To that extent the economic pousepr of
the country had developed,

“As to ¢hat should be the war-time footlng in
finance and economy, since it was war, * the first thing
to be'done was to meet the military demandg %o (inance
the industries related to their demands and natlonal
defense, and concentrate on zoods, funds, and labor in
those spheres,

* Extibit 3338-B, A chapter of the afore-mentlgned
hook, purporting to be a speect of KAYA on 12 ril, 1939,
entitled YPatt tc Patrlotic Serviece Trhrousgh Javinza,® and
sub-titled "Preparatlions for a Protracted Jar®. atated trat
in present-day warfare many kinds of arma Fave been uged,
and battles are noy fougkt on and under the ground and in
the mir, Materials needed for war were S0 RUNETrONS that

one would be surprised to hear that some things weore
required, directly or indirectly, for var. &3 the 3e0pe

of war had enlarged, the amount of needed materdals amounated
to a surprisinzly large quantity, Jo in time of peace

they must prepare neeessary 2o00ds sd ag to be able to swoply
them in time of war,

* Their brethren, the officers and soldlers of
the army, were then fightinz in Chlina to bring about true
peace and prosperity to the Orient, The most Important
thing is a2 preparation “or a orotracted war so as not to
have the army feel the lack of war supplles, ¢The uar
expenditure of 2500 million yen had been epproved by the
Diet, and additionel expendltures of 480C million yen were
approved also, and amounted to the sum of 7400 milllon
ven., ¢ However, part of the expenditure had come from
sovernment bonds, and most would have to depend on the
issue of bonds,

| The budget for 1938 would amount to about 380
hundred million yen, and the total of bonds issuved would
be about 56 hundred million yen.
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in excerpt sub-titled, "Savings [or the Purpose
of Carryling out the Policy", stated that one year hence
they must issue more than l% hundred million yen of
zovernment bonds. Success or falilure of war-time policiles
regardinzg finance and economy depended solely on whether
the honds would be absorbed satisfactorily.

- * Exhibit 3338-C, an excerpt from the same book,
entitled, "Women Behind the Guns", stated that all the
world marveled at the glorious results their forces had,
achi#ved in the China Incident. These were ascribable to
the Emperor's virtues and the loyazl forces in the Army and
Navy. The people must not be dazzled by these results and
take things easy, for the anti-Japanese movement in Crina.
in ronjunction with Communist power, was stronger than they
imargined.

In modern warfare they must be victorious not
merely in battle, but also in the spiritual, diplomatic,
and economic wars, and the economic war was the most ;
imnortant factor bringing war to a successful end. 'The
government therefore had started the National Spirit General
Vobilization Movement * and was trying to enhance the
nation's spirit, and had reorganized its financlal and
economic policies to meet war-time requirements. liuch
attention was being paid to policies to mecet the war-time
situation so that the soldiers mizht not lack arms, the
people mieht not be short of necessaries., and that prices
might not go un.

Tre zovernment pollicles in finance and economics
denended on the people's efforts. What is czlled national
economic power decided final victory, and the determination
and cooneration of the nation were necessary. The wonen
behind the suns should cooperate.

* Tre witness was asked if, in 1938 and 1939,
until e became President of the North Crina Development
Company, hre continued these talks, speeches, and articles
throughout Japan. He stated he conducted addresses and
talks to quite an extent to encourage sgvinegs. In the
spring of 1938 he became chirf investigator with regard
to adjustineg prices, and undertook plans for creatinz a
nprice struc’ure, and therefore .the number of speeches he
made decreased. After he became President of the Develop-
ment Company he had little time to go on lecture trips.
In November, 1933, he hecame temporarily chairman of the
Japan-Manchukuo-China Round Table Conference. He made no
speeches in connection with thls committee.
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30689 « In Exhibit 3339, a speech by KAYA taken from
the book "Renorts aon Tanan-Manchukuo-China Economic
Round Table Conference', dated 2 November 1938, KAYA

stated that sponsors were honored that so many neonle,
30690 especially those influential in financial circles; *
| were able to attend the meeting. It was hardly neces-
sary to mention that the aim of the army's attack in
. the China Incident lay in destroying the Chiang Kail-
shek regime which-was thoroughly anti-Japanese and
pro-communistic and d1d not understand the position
of China and its mission in East Asia. Later they
had received joyful reports that Wuchang, Hankow and
Canton had been occupied. Now that the Chiang regime
had suffered a crippling blow it was a great advance
toward achievement of the purpose of the holy war.
He was continually lost in admiration of the army's
vaiour and loyalty and labors of its soldiers, It
was hardly necessary to say that the holy war's aim
. was not merely annihilating the Chiang regime, but
also the establishment of a new regime friendly to
both Japan and lManchukuo SO they might hopne to rebuild
2 new China. Furthermore, 1t consists in establishing
a basis of peace in the Orient through a far-reaching

construction of a new era Was completed, it could not
be said that the mission of the troops haf been com-

nleted.

As long as this completion was not in sight,
he thought they could not compensate for the suffer-
ings of those who lost thelr 11ves in the war. To
establish peace in the Orient there must be a strong
national union between the three nations which was
more than friendly cooneration. One might say this
was the dawn of a new Liast Asia and its foundation.

To realize their ideal of being a stabilizing
force, they must contrive to establish 'and expand arma-

30692 ° ments and economic power. * Strong economic power was y
the underlying foundation of powerful armaments. It |
had been keenly realized how greatly armaments depended
on economic power, even in normal times. The expansion
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of economic power was the basis for stabilizing and im-
proving national life and welfare. IT was a matter of
course that great emphasis in future policies should be
on comoletion and develooment of the united economic
power of the Japman-Manchukuo-China bloc and public
opinion was in favor of this. They should devote
national energies to longe-range economic construction
and government and private enterprises would be vro-
moted and diligent people would be able to obtain em-
ployment and theilr 1ife would be stabilized., * A sta-
bilized life did not mean during the construction periced,
jdleness and abundant materials, but it would be a frugal,
though healthy, 1ife in which one worked hard, got much
and saved much and contributed to the expansion of eco-
nomic power. A strong Japan would be established to
secure peace and the welfare of future generations

would be promoted.

The most important point and the objective
of future endeavor was the development of economic
power in the three countries. Since the founding of
Manchukuo, she had been formulating gpreat plans for
finance, economics and the people's welfare, striving
for their realization.

* Japan also had exerted herself to assist
her with funds, materials and manpower. That country
was making rapid strides in the development of
resources, heavy industries, transportation and com-
munication, and in the greatness of her progress
was worthy of wonder. These schemes aimed at the
united expansion of the national power of Japan and
Manchukuo based on the inseparable oneness of both.

It would be a natural policy for Manchukuo
to cooperate closely with the revived new China. In
spite of the short existence of the temporary North
China Government and the restored Central China
Government, they were progressing 1n constructing a
new China which would be friendly to Japan and Man-
chukuo and oppose communism. * It would not be long
before there would be established a new regime uniting
a1l China. The impoertant trend of the new China was
toward a united economic power by the three nations.
Peace in the Orient was a great ideal that would con-
tribute to world peace and which was important to the
realization of ndtional spirit. It meant a great deal
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Page that on this occasion economists from the three nations
would engage in a Round Table discussion on plans and
policies for unifying economic cooperation, Influen-
tial economists from Japan and China and Manchukuo had

30696 been invited for the conference, * KAYA believed that

. to attain this objective, much depended uvon their
assistance. He had requested their attendance to seek
their understanding and hoped they would give full
assistance.

!
b
1
!
|

30697 * The accused was asked if this speech was
eiven on 2 November 1938 and he said he believed
that was its pgeneral gist. He remembered a Round
Table Conference at Hiroshima in late November 1938,
at which he was present and made a sveech,

Exhibit -3339-A, excerpt from "Reports on
the Japan-Manchukuo-China Economic Round Table Con-
ference" given 29 November 1938 at Hiroshima was the
30699 speech acknowledged by the accused, * In it he stated
that the aim of the present incident was a war for
construction and not destruction. Hitherto, China’s
condition had been like a cancer, and since surgical
removal was necessary, Japan had been performing that
| role. After the operation had been completed, new
‘ flesh and new life would appear,

The temporary povernment of Nori: China,
the restoration government of Central China, the
Federal Mongolian Commission, and the Peace Preser-
vation Committees in Hankow and Canton had made
their appearance and were moving toward unification.
They were on the way toward construction of a new
Fast Asia but its basis must be a strong unifica-
tion and economists must proceed toward welding

an economic area,

KAYA said he was one who believed that the

foundation of the people's welfare, as well as
30700 cultural and national defense, * must be based in
g e general upon economy. Therefore, the basis must be

an economic one which would produce a union of Asila
for the Asiatics. The fact +hat economic representa-
tives from the three countries had been and were
holding in various parts cof Japan and China economlc
Round Table Conferences was something history would
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NARRATIVE SUMMARY OF THE

q | 14 October 1947
" KAYA s
£ Kaya - Cross and Redirect - 8
i\ - 3
9 Page that the company was formed to further the economic 3
d development and advance the interests of both Japan
a1 and China.
a5 30704 ¥+ The accused stated that he told TOJO that
] ne did not onpose war after the arrival of the Hull
Y note, He was sresent at the Imperial Conference of ~
1 December 1941 and 4id not oppose war with the U,S. b
30705 * at that time, Asked 1if he had advance knowledge A
' that hostilities were to open against the UesBe AN :
: December, he stated that since war had been declded |
on, he thought hostilities would open sometime 1in
f December. Asked if in his {nterrogation, he saild ﬁ
| that he did not know the exact date for commencing

| hostilities, but belleved it was the night before

| they commenced ihat he heard about 1it, He stated

that the date was actually nelither apnnounced in the

Cabinet nor Liaison Conferences. He heard the day f

| wefore hostilities commenced, OT the day before

A that, but not at a conference. He heard this either

at the place where the Liaison Conference was held

or at the Premier’'s of ficial residence, but did not

| remember whether it was from TOJO, the Navy Minister,
| or the Chief Cabinet Seceretary, but it was one€ of

the three.

{
; ‘ 30706 + He didn't recall who else heard this. |
o The accused was asked {f he did not state 1in nis 9

f
{ interrogatory that he believed he heard 1t from
| another member of the Cabinet officially but it

| might have been at the Premier's recidence from p
TOJO, SHIMADA oT HOSHINO, The accused stated that !

it was true ne heard 1t from one of those three,
but he had never said as to whether this was of ficlal

or uncefficial,

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By Mr., Levin

The accused was asked the circumstances
in which he made the speech of 26 October 1937
(Exhibit 3338-A). He «tated it was at a meeting ol
members of the Preparatory Committee and it was a
formal function. Since it was that kind of meeting,
he stated what was generally Known to be the govern=-
ment's pelicy <nd the general situation at the time.

L
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Page He didn't remember the exact number who R
attended but he didn't believe it could be so Very .
large., He did not attend the Tokyo Conference of the i

Economic Committee.

The address at Hiroshima on 2 November 1938 . ;
(Exhibit 3339) was also made vefore the meeting of the .-
Preparatory Committee in Tokyo. t

. 30708 ¥ Those who attended were comparatively few

| : and he made a Very informal speech on a personal basis. |

: b The speech at Hiroshima on 29 November 1938 (Exhibit o
3339-A) was made in the same spirit. i

™ - ':-:1-_—1...:1.‘1-'\“- Tt b = R

'Q:ﬁ:ﬂ‘ﬂ‘:‘"f—ﬁf'ﬁfﬂfﬁ-——‘ fr‘,‘l’"‘:"".:\.’hh =T =




- R S RN MR IR T e
sy 3 O T e T TR RIS

- T sretrm s ey e ARSI T AR PPN

e Ty = s Tlem il e a e S Ol :

Def. Doc. No. 2660 (kevised) Exhibit # &2
:‘I%
OPENING STATENMENT ON S8LHALF OF :%
KaYh, Okinori iﬁ
_j
, ; ‘ :
; !
: 5
i

Bv: TAKANO, Tsuruo
Y DANAKA, Yesumichi
FUJTIWARA, Kenji

?

:

i

% Japanese Counsel
By: Micheel Levin

Anericen Counsel




. e

n
4

Def. Doc. No. 2660 (Kevised)

T OF KAYA, Okinori

OPENING STATEM

Tn this brief opening statement oOf the defendant Kaye 1t

to preface whet we have to sa

e e paucity of evidence sgal
the Indictment; bub

y by pointing out

is necessary
nst him to s\ =

that not only is ther
ecution under

tein the charges of the Pros
that he held conventional

fices curing the Konoye and Tojo Cebinets, and

administretive of
tionel and routine manner ,

thers

performed his duties in & conven

thing in the record to sustein the charges ageinst him.

is no
¢ Finance Iiinistry &8s

will show thstv he entered th
lege through competitive civ
re cereer was spent in the

xception of his service

The evidence
§1 service

a young nen out of col
t de-

exemination, and thet his entil

f the Government, with the e

partment o)
as President of the North Chine Developrnent Gompany . Vie be-
is statement bY the tenuous 8TgU=

Wiithout apology, W€ nevertheless feel that we

dismissal.
ised by the Progecution 1n

must meet the issues Tre a negative

WEY »
" In GROUP ONE: CRIMES LGLINST PLsCE of the Indictment,

s charged with 511 the Counts gxcept

nd prosecution of a wer of &g~

those concerning initiation ¢

ainst French Indo-China end Soviet nussig, and

gression &g
The evidence will

he Manchuriean TIncident.

the initietion of ©
that this sccused held, glthough

show that the first position
was when he becarie Vice-Ninister

ot be seld of &ny poweT,
bruasry 1937, followed by hi
e 1937, which continued O
year, and his evidence will

it cenn
g short tenure as

of Finance in Fe
Minister of Finence in Jun nly until
a period of less then &
¢ conducted his office as &

icipete in a conspiracy &

May 1938,
indiceate that h

n office of gstate;

g charged,

and that he did not partv
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CLo: LS8, hoe RO6U (iouie
and had no connection with one whatever. It is, of course,
contended that no conspiracy existed, but if there was one,
+the evidence will indicate thet he was not & party to its The
Prosecution hes not tendered any evidence ageinst the defendant
Keye in connection with the attecks against Sovietb Kussia oOT
French Indo-China nor 1n connection with the Manchurian Inci-
dent. In his personnel record it steted theat he wes an officlal
of the Finance kiinistry but he was out of the Government about
a year before the porder disputes with Soviet Kussies took place
as claimed by the Prosecution, end 1t was about two yeers after
he resigned from the Government thet the French Indo-China de-
velopment took place. Wwhen the Tri-Partite Pact wes signed
ne wes not & member of the Government and there is of course
no evidence to indicate sany connsatinn on his pert in either
the negotietion or the sipaisg 0L 149 “act. Yor some tlme
prior end after i{he occuvrrence of tae archnrien Incident he
was a minor official of the Finance MinistIy. fhe evidence
will show thet when the nutter of millitery pudgets came before
hia for considerstion, he exerteéd, within his limited powers,
every effort to slash t hem and prevent them from increesing.

The Prosecution hcs cherced thet he was party to the plan-
ning of o huge-scele wariof ageression but not only did he have
nothing to do with it, (&nd there is no evidence toO indicate
that he did) but he knew nothing ebout the Pive Year Plan for
Anmunition Industries and Five Year Plan fér Heavy Industries
sgid to have bhecn cstablished in May and June of 193C. The
Cebinet of which he was & nemter did nct adept such plans nor
did he have anything to do with theiT gadoption nor with putting
them in effect. |

The evidence will show that whet the defendent did in of-

fice during the time he bteceane Vice-liinister of Finesnce in
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Def. Uoc. No. 2660 (hevised)

Februery, 1937 up to the time he resigned as Finance Ministenr
in Mey, 1938 weas to establish measures to combat the turmoil

and uncerteinty that were troubling the economy of the country

before he cssumed his post and which beceme pggravated on
account of the Chins Incident, But he did try to svoid radi-
cal chenges. The preveiling tendency at that time wes for &

strong foreign policy, and at home the abolition of stetus

"-—--'_‘ -

suo in favor of radical changes, His moderate policy, there-

o -

fore, was regarded in disfevor and for that reason he Was

ssked to resign his post as Finance Minister. He resigned

T — -

pecsuse of this difference in views.

The evidence will show theat the defendaent Keya wes Presie
dent of the North Chine Levelopment Company from August 1939

to October 1941, He was eppointed e&s 1ts administretive head

e

end scted in that cepecity pursuent to law. It will be pointed
out that the epprovel of the Prime Minlster wes required when
either nmaking or revising regulations, increasing cepital and
the cerrying on of the functions of this compeny. The evidence
will show that it wes under the direction snd supervision of
the China sffasirs Boerd and he wes not permitted to ect on his
own initiative.

The evidence will show lr. Keya had a strong desire toO
evoid wer long before he beceane a member of Tojo's Cabinet.
He had no connection with the Imperial Conferences of July sand
September, 1941 nor did he know anything sbout these conferences,
In October, 1941, when Tojo recuested him to become the Finance
Minister, he did so only after receiving the assurance from
Tojo that the new Ceblnet would endeasvor to melntain peace and
would adopty policieé to thet end.

After Joining the Cebinet, the defendaent heya worked to- ,

ward the amiceble settlement of the Japanese-American negotia- ]

tions. He endeavored to prevent wer even if the negotietions
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were not successful. However, the conditions et the time were

beyond his power to prevent war, Dissatisfied as he was with

the outcome, he did not resign from his post because he could

{ 3 not do so as s loyel citizen of the country. However, he

assentcd to the decision for war because he clearly recognized

thet the war was ineviteble, |
Under GROUP TWO of the Indictnent, MURDER, the defendant

Kaye is churged with Counts 37 to 47. The evidence will show ﬁ

that Mr. Keya did not plan & war of sggression nor knowingly

sgreed to it. He wes not a party to any plen to open hostilie-

ties without first giving notice, nor did he give silent appro- *

val to such s plen, IHe was not & party to esny plen to wege

psttles in breach of laws oOr 1and werfare, nor did he glve his
consent nor silent approval to such scts. The record 1s re-
plete that the Supreme GCommend was independent of the Cabinet
and therefore s civilien Cabinct officer could have no respon-
sibility in reletion to the weging of battles. Civilian nem-
bers of the Cabinet had no voice 1n war ooerations. The at-
tecks on lienkow end Canton took plece long efter he resigned
his post &s Finence ..ilnlster.
As to GROUP THREE; CONVLKTICILL Vihh CRIi'ES ~ND CRIMES
LGAINST HUMANITY, the defendent 18 cherged with ell three
counts., However, the treestment of prisoners of war was @ rnet-
* ter outside his Jurisdiction. . wes not informed nor con-
sulted on the matter of illepel treetment of prisoners of war :
and it was & matter with which he was cherged with no respon- E

sibility and in the nature of negetive prescntation we state ;

l _ the Prosecution did not directly or indirectly offer evidence

to indicate any responeibility on the pert of lr. Kaye in re-

lation to these counts 1in the Indictment,
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. In fine, the evidence 1O be offered by the accused will
::f;'-- ~.show that he is & career public servant) that such duties and

functions he performed Were either as a member of the Capinet

- q1
H -~ oo ww . b e ._-1111-- 1; Of
or in en cdministrevive capucity und ncv ctheorwise axi

which were performed zs a state officlal essentiel in carryling

out the functions of government.
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Def. Doc., No. 2660

OPZNING STATLMENT OF KAYA, OKINORI

In this brief opening statement of the defendant Kava it
1s necessary to preface whet we have to suay by poeinting cut
that not only is there & paucity of evidence ageinst him to sus-
tain the charges of the Prosecution under the Indictment; but
except for the fact as has been shown, that he held conventional
edministrative offices during the Konoye and Tojo Cablnets, and
perforried his duties in a conventional and routine menner, there
1s nothing in the record to sustein the charges sgainst him. T!
evidence will show that he entered the Finance Ministry as a
young nan out orf college through competitive civil service exaL
nation, and that his entire cereer was spent in that departnent
Oof the Government, with the exception of his service sas President
of the North China Development Compeny, which may said to have
been kindred to his work in the Finance Ministry. We believe
we ere sustained in this statement by the tenuous argument of
the Frosecution made on this defendant's motion for dismissal,
Without epology, we nevertheless feel that we must meet the is-
sues reised by the Prosecution in a negetive way .

In GROUP ONE: CRILES AGLIN'ST FPEACE of the Indictment, the
defendent Keya is charged with all the Counts except those con-
cerning initiation and prosccution of s war of acgression againsg
French Indo-China snd Soviet kussia, and the inisistion of the
M.zcrurien Incident. The evidence will show that the first po
tion that this accused held, zlthough it cannot be ssid of any
power, was when he became Vice-Minister of Finance in Februsry
1937, followed by his short tenure ass Minister of Finance in
June 1937, which continued only until Mey 1938, a pericd of
less than a yeer, sud his evidence will indicete that he con-
ducted his officec &s an office of stete; and that he did not
participate in a counspirecy as charged, and had no connecticn

with one whatever. It is, of course, contended that rno con-
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spiracy existed, but if there was one, the evidence will indi-
cate that he was not a party to it. The Prosecution has not
tenéered'any eévidence against the defendant XKaya in connection
with the attacks egeinst Soviet iussia or French Indo-Chins nor
in connection with the Manchurian Incident. In his personnel
record it stated that he was gn official of the Finance Ministry
but he was out of the Government about a year before the border
disputes with Soviet Kussie took place as claimed by the Prose-
cution, and it wes gbout two vears sfter he resigned from the
Government that the French Indo-Ching developrient took plsace.
When the Tri-Paertite Pact was siened he was not a member of the
Government and there is of course no evidence to indicate any
connection on his part in either the negotiation or the signing
of the Pact. TFor some time prior und after the occurrence of
the Menchurlan Incident he was & minor officiasl of the Finance
lilnistry. The evidence will show that when the matter of mili
tary budgets came before him for consideration, he exerted,
within his limited powers, every offort to slash them and pre-
vent them from increasing.

The Prosecution hss charged thet he was party to the plan-
ning of & huge-scale wer of sggression but not only did he have
nothing to do with it, (and therc is no evidence to indicate
thet he did) but he knew nothing sbout the Five Yeer Plan for
Armunition Industries and five Year Plan forHeavy Industries
sald to heve been established in liay and June of 1938. The
Cabinet of which he was a riember did not adopt such plans nor
did he have anything to do with their adoption nor with putting
ther in c¢ffect.

The evidence will show thut what the defendant did in of-
fice during the time he became Vice-Minister of Finance in
February, 1937 up to the time re rcsigned as Finance Minister

in NMey, 1938 was to establish measures to combat the turmoil

-3-
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*

and uncertainty that were troublins the econony of the country .
beforc he assumed his post and wiiich bscame aggrdvatﬁd on ac-
count of the China Incident. Whet steps he took towards con-
trolled economy, he took because such steps he felt would tend
to avoid wer. But he did try to avoid radical changes. The
prevailing tendency at that time was for a’ strong foreign policy,
and at home the sbolition of status quo in. favor of radical
changes. . His.moderaté policy; thérefcre; was regarded iﬁ dis-
favor and for that reason he was asked to resign his post as
Finance Minister. He resigned beceuse of this difference in
views.

Tﬁe evidence will show that the defendent Keya was Presi-
dent of the North Chine Development Corpany fron August 1939 to
October 1941. Mr. Keya had nothing to do with the orgenization
of this conpany nor with the enactment of the law which created
it. He wes appointed as its edministrative head and acted in
thet capacity pursuant to law. It will be pointed out that L .
company was under the direct control of the Prime Minister and
that the approveal of the Prime Minlster was required when either
naking or revising regulations, increasing capital and the cer-
rying on of the functions of this company, The evidence will
show thst it wes under the direction and supervision of the
China Affeirs Bourd and he was not permitted to act on his own
initiative.

The evidence will show wr, Kaye had & strong desire 1o
avoid war long before he becanec & member of Tojo‘s Cabinet.

He had no connection with the Imperiel Conferences of July and
September, 1941 nor did he know anything ebout these conferences.
In October, 1941, when Tojo requested hin 1o becone the Finance
Minister, he did so only after receiving the assurance from To Jo

thet the new Cablnet would endeevor to naintain pcasce and would

adopt policies to that end.
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- After joining the Cabinet; the defendant Kaya worked to-
werd the amicable settlement of the Jepanesc-hAmerican negotlia-
tions. He endeavored to prevent war even ifw;he negotiations .
were not successful., However, the conditions at the time were
beyond his power to prevent war. Dissatisfied as he was with
the outcome, he did not resign from his post beceuse he could noty
do so as & loyal citizen of the country. However, he assented
to the decision for wer because he clesrly rccognized that the
war wes inevitable.

Under GROUP TWO of the¢ Indictment, IMURDER, the defendant
Kaya is charged with Counts 37 to 47. I'he evidence will show
that Mr. Keya did not plan a wer of aggression nor knowingly
agreed to it. He wes not a party to any plan to open hostili-
ties without first giving notice, nor did he give silent approval

to such e plan. He wes not e party to any plan to wage battles

3

in breach of laws or land werfere, nor did he give his consent )

nor silent spprovel to such acts., The record is replete that
the Supreme Cormand wes independent of the Cabinet and there-
fore & civiliasn Cebinet officer could have no responsibility

in relation to the weging of wer. Vvivilian members of the Cabi-
net hed no voice in wer operations. <the attacks on Hankow and
Canton took plece long after he resigned his post as Finance

Minister,
As to GROUP THREE: CONVLITIONAL VAR CRIMLS AND CRIMES

AGAINST HUMANITY, the defendent is cherged with all three
counts. However, the treatnent of prisoners of wer was & met-
ter outside his jurisdiction. He was not informned nor consulted
on the matter of illegal treatment of prisonurs of war and it
was & matter with which he wes charged with no responsibility
and in the neture of negotive presentation we state the Prosecu-
tion did not directly or indirectly offer evidence o indicate

sny responsibility on the pert of lir. Kaya in relation to these

counts in the Indictrnient.
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3 £f military currehncCy concerning .
!

In relation to the matter O
it szppears that 1in

which the Prosecution has offered cvidence,

r the preparetion of military currency

Januory 1941 the order foO

by the Jap&anese Army was made on the Finance Minlstry at a time

»
| when Mr. Kaya was not the Finance Minister end the only evidence

o charge Mr. Keye with responsi- 1

offered by the Prosecution is t

bility of establishing the procedure of hendling nilitary cur- :
|

rency ot a time when war seemed imminent but +his procedure was 4
I

slreedy in preperation ¢t the time Nr. Kaya assumed office and |

it wes nerely 8 routine edministretive mnatter.

In fine, the evidence to pe offecred by the «
that such duties end

ccused will

functions he perforiicd WETE cither as a member of the Cebinct

or in an adriinistrative capacity and not otherwise all of which

1 in carrying out the

were performed as & stete official gssentia

functions of government.
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with the procedure followed in my country, I hereby denose as followsi
@1 (1) - I was born on January 30, 1889, in the city of Hiroshima, |
Hiroshita Prefecture, coming from a middle claas famlly. After graduating |
from the First Higher School in 1911, I entered the Political Science

Department of “the Tokyo Imperial University and graduated in March 1917.

Immediately after graduation I entered the Finance Ministry as
an employee. I took and passed the higher civil service examination and
therecafter recei~ed promotions continuously under the Civil Servica.

In September 1918, I was sent to the United States as secretary to the
Japanese Financial Commissioner in New York City, In Movember 1919 1 was
ordered to Burope and returned to Javen in March 1920 to & nost in the
Accourts Bureau of the Finance Ministry, In 1927, I was =ent to the Geneva

Disarmament Conference and in Jenuary 1928 was anpointed actlng gsecretary

to the;then Finsnce Minister Mitsuchi, In November 1929, I was ordered to
attend the London Naval Conference as an sttendant to the Flenivotentlary.
In March 1930 I was annointed secretary to the Flnance Minister snd
Section Chief of the Accounts Bureau, I returned to Jernen 1n May 1930,
In November 1932 I wew anvointed Chief of the Budget an¢ 8abtlement Sectinon
and in May 1934, Chief of the Accounts Bureau, I was aonointed Chlef of the
Finance Bureau in May 1936 and Vice-lilnister of Filnance on February 2, 1937,
On June 4, 1937 I was apoointed Minivver of Flnance, shich poct I held

until May éé, 1938, when I recigned. In August 1939, I was appointed Presi-
dent of the North China Development Company, which posi 1 resigned on
October 18, 1941 to become Finence Minister. I resigned es Finance Minister
on February 19, 1944,

| (2) ~ As the above mentioned record indicates, excent for a neriod of

about two years which I served as President of the North China Develonment

--l—-




| Defense Document No, R642

Company, I devoted my entire career as an officlal of the Finance Minlstry

arld was'wholly occupied with matters of financial administration. The goal

of my endeavor was the maintenance of a healthy national finance. |

I had no connection whatsoever with the so—-called rightest or

leftist or military clique, nor was I a member of any polltlcal party.

For a short period after August 1944, I joined the Imverial Rule Political
Assistence Assoclation, an organization composed chiefly of members of

} both houses of the Diet, but I do not know whether that assoclation could
be termed a political party.

In the Finance Ministry, s great part of my time was spent in

the study and evaluation of military budgets and other clvil budgets, and
during this peﬂiid, I constantly endeavored to slash military budgets and
prevent them from increasing, The prevallling conditicns at the Uime made
this task extremely difficult, but I believe I succeeded in no small degree
in suopnressing the growth of military budgets.

I attended the Geneva and London Naval Disarmament Conferences
as a member of the Japanese delegations and exerted myself toward the
successful culmination of the disarmament treatles.

My effort to suppress the military budgets and successfuly conclude
the disermament conferences were due to the instruction of my superior
officlals and to my personal desire to maintain a healllyy nallonal finance
and thus lessen the burdens of the veovle and a sireng hope for the
maintenance of peace,

(3) = I am charged with Counts 1 to 5 of the I[ndictment, Bven if the
conspiracy and planning of war of ageressicn as menilorcd ln thece Counts
did take place I was not party to them and had aov coanvectlon whatsoever,
I am charged with all the Gouﬁts from 6 Lo 36, exzepu f'or Ucunts
; . 18, 23, 25, 26, 33, 35 and 36, Of the Counts 1 am charged with, with
reference to those concerning the lManchurian Incident, I wish to siale, as

i my personal record indicates, that prior to the outbwea! of the Manchwrian

Iacident and for sometime thereafter, I was robhing more (hen A Seeticn

B, VT
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Chief in the Finance Minlstry'a

:
| whatsoever, From December 1929 to November 1932,
December 1929 and after November 1932, 1

nd had no connection with the Incident ]

T was not even concerned

with military budgets, Prior to

wes concerned with the study and evaluation of military budgets and Auring

erted my efforts towsrd reducing them,
after November 1932. 1 vehemently

this period ex The demands for

nilitery budgets increesed greatly

opposed the inereased demands and fought to the best of my ability %o

keep them qﬂwn.

1 wish to state that I had no connection whatsoever with any plan

or preparation for sn aperession against the French Indo-China or sgninst

the Soviet Russia,

During the period from May 26, 1938 to October 18, 1941, I had

e Japanese Govern—

no connection with the Cabinet nor was T sn official of th

ment, and I had no connection whatsoever with the Tri-Partite Pact with

Germany and Italy, concluded 1in 1940,
(4) - I became Minister of Finance on June 4y 1937, 1 know nnthing

cident before its outbresk. The Cabinet made no

about Lukouchliao In
T learned sbout 1t for the first

plans or preparation for the Incident.

time after the outbreak of +he Incident and the report was that hostility

between the Chinese and the Japenése wroke out due to i1llegal attack by

The Cabinet, of which I was & member, decided on & policy to

and to settle it on the snot as soon

the Chinese.

regard the Inclident as a local Incident

as nossible, It was against the sending of troops from Japan, but if that

became inevitable to 1imit the troops to a small number, The sending of

troops or the increase in troops was due to the Army report that continued

11legal attacks on the part of the Chinese troops and to the massing of

o when the Army requested for increase in trooons

their forces in the area 8

1n order to protect the lives ond interests of Jsoenese 1n that area, the

Csbinet could not help but give its aggsent. The Cebinet!s motive in

assenting to the recuests for sending trooos by the Army was to nro’ o

-3
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the small Jepanese force statloned there in accordance to treaty.
I opposed especlally the dispatching of troops to Shanghal for I A

believed it -would spread the Incident wider, 1 ssked for reconsideration,

but my request came to no avall, for the other Cabinet members thought the

dispatching of troops was necessary in order to ovrotect Japsnese interests.

However, on every occaslon I tried my best to 1limit the budgets required

for the dispatching of troops,
The Cabinet of which I was a member was staunch on its policy to

refrain from infringing upon the rights of Third Powerse.
(4-b% We, civil members of the Cabinet, were not informed beforehand

nor consulted about the various nlans for Battles. It was with the greatest

anxiety that we viewed the apread of the hostilitles to a8 wider and wider

arca.

Regarding the Nanking attack, we civilisn members of the Cabinet,

were not consulted about the attacke

We received no report about the alleged acts of atrocity at

Nanking and oﬁﬁéf_piaﬁéa, nor read aﬁjfﬁiﬁhdéﬁéﬁﬁyhﬁéh_aété in the nress.

1 did not know thau such acts had been coummitted,
(4=<) I resigned as Finance Minister in May 1938, long before the

spread of the hostillties %o Hankow in Central China and Canton 1in Southern
China. My resignatlion was requested by Premler Konoye and I was haopy to

be relieved for I had been hoping for an opnortunity to do so.

d

(4-d) The erbitrary confiscations of Chinese enterorises, etc., in North
China were made by the militery for operation purposes and the Japanese

Cabinet had no connection with auch acts whatsoever,
(4—e) The prosecution has charged that during the neriod I was Vice-
Minister of Finance from Februsry to June 1937, the Five Year Plan for

Steel and the Third Plan for North China were adonted by the Jepanese Covern-—

ment; however, I know nothing about such olans,

i
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arged thet during the neriod I was Finance

- The prosecution has ch

Minister from June 1937 to May of the folloalng year, the Aruy Five Year
Plen for Heary Indurizieds WAS adopted for prevsrabtlon . a future wel's The
wcli a plan actuslly

Cebinet did not adovt sy such plan. T ad\ld not know O%

existed or not and 1 could not have been & perty to i%e
From the t:me prior vo my becoming Financc i1inister, the

ersainty and I felt

country wes 1n a ghate of unc

finencial civcle of tias
the difficultb recncnsinility when I susuiec the post of Finance Minister,

c¢f the China Inciccut only inereesed the unrest among

The suwdcen outlreal

the ecomnomic and firan>lal circlies therety nultlplying the burden placed
on my shoulderse Dusing the one yers 1 was Finence Minister, there was no
room for any prepara.ion for a fuburce wars 1 was occunied wmith the difficult
task before nme and I did not even Greum ubout a preparation for a future
war., The Cabinet hed 1ta hands fil with tne China Incident and did not

think sbout going into another ware

(56-a) I was President of tre Worth Clilna Develonment Comnany from

211 Lostlly chiefly about the Connany

August 1239 ©o October 1941 and &b

during the period 1 wes itas oresident.

The North China Develo

Law for the Establishmer
were defined by lavs, passed

pment Comyeny wes established 1n Novenber

19238 in conformity to the it of the North Chira

Development Comprny and 1ts opurpose and ab ject

1+t aimed to bring about economlc COO
It waa not eatabilshed

peration between China

by the Tist.
and Japan for mtual benefit of both countries.
ivd mowers.

»fo4nging uoon the economic Anterests of LI

for the purpose ¢f in
1t desired the narticipation of third nower can
ringc unon

+h China, The Company A1d not inf

On the cou'rary, jtal in the

econonic daveicpmend of Nor
the rights of the Chineee people nor made any nreparntinn.With aim
wer, nor recelved any ynohraction from the Tapan Cabinet to that effect.
was not permitted to engege in any industry. 1t

(5-0) — The Conpary
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ments and loans, It

did not have the vower to mobilize the material wealth
of North China, nor was 1t engaged in such work,

In making loans or investments, the Comvany was limited by law

in seope, that 18, it was permitted to mike investments or loans only in

such industries as mining, transnartation, communications, electricity,

salt manufacturing, in certain small manufaeturing enternrises and in the

wholesale of coal,

make loans or investments, It

was not concerned with the spinning industry, tobacco and milling industries,

which were active in North Ohina, nor in general trade, agriculture, banking

and insurance business,

Investmente and loans were generally made 4in S8ino—Jepanese Joint

S8tock Comnanies and other Japanege comoanles besides the North China

DeveIOpmentHOomnany also made 1nveatmentﬁ,in'theae comnanies, The “Arth

China Develonment Comnany 414 not exerélse a monopoly over the investments,

(5=¢) = The Company did not have any arbltrary rights, It had no

It aimed to ad juat the eeconamic

activities of No-tn Liira, but 1t was nnt elven any power to control the

economy of North China, = Losns and investments were subject to contracts

under which the company obtaining the financial ald was required to obtain

the approval of the North China Development Company in certain prescribed

matters in order to avold over-investment or unwarranted expansion and

thus endeavored to bring about a sound and orderly development of the economy

of North China, The Oompany hed no rights over any industry except those

in which it had finencial interest and even then, the rights were limited

to those preseribed in the contracts,

(5-d) = AN major acts of the Company, including the rranting of

approval to itas affiliated companies, were made at the 1nutruction and

approval of the China Affgirn Seerd, The Company was orohibited from

b
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taking any action on 1its own,

' (Sve)i—rThe Gomnnny's sccounts were mostly in the red and subgidies
from the Jeprnese Government were required to pay nrivate stockholders
dividends of not more than 51X'(6) percent per annum, Most of the
affilinted comnanies were in the red or made very 1ittle orofits, In the

payment of dividends the Japanese stockholders were not given speclel

favors,

(5-f) -~ A1l funds the Company invested in North China were raised
inJapan, The Comnany did not recelve any pronerty nor sneclal rights from
the North China Political Council, nor did the Comnany grant any
monopolistic right to enyone, It had no power to do so.

The investments and lorns handled by the Company were not

large. Compared to those 1n Jepan Proner and Manchuria during the seme

period, they were very small,

(5-g) — The Comnany did not recelve any instructions from the
Jepanese Qovernment nar on its own free will attemnted to expand the
production of its affiliated companies with 1941 or theresbout as the goal.
While the production of the sffilisted comnanies increased from time to
time, the Comnany looked forwerd towards long-rangad drvelooment of the
industries, The Company endeavored towsrd a solid expansion of the
industries it was concerned with, The Tatunz Coel ines, for instance, was
expended on a well-plenned program and after my resicnation as nre:;ident
of the North China Development Company this coal mine was oroducing ten
thousand tona of coel per daye

(5-h) = I thought of many plana for the welfsre of the veoole in the
area, but I was not sble to carry out my plens due to disorder caused Dy
the fighting in the sres and because Japan was not in a position to Liclp
us materially, However, I was able to carry out one plen which did helo
the peopnle.

In early 1940, the Peiping-Tientsin erea wes smept by a tanine

=

—
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which threatened the whnle area, T was told thset importation of twenty

million yen worth of wheat flour was necessary to tide over the crisis,

1F dbut the Government of North China - the North China Political Council -
814 not have the necessary foreign funds to buy the flour with, I,

therefore, negotiated with the Jsnsnese Government for twenty million yen

in foreign furds with which to buy the flour., The Japenese Government

at that time was hard nressed for foreign money, but I managed to obtain

e Vice-Minister of Finance Ohno, who promised to

I next negotisted with the then

the understending of th

extend us as much help as was noseible.

Minister of Communications Katsu for bottoms to transport the flour.

Bottoms, likewlce, were short in Jsnan at that tine, but I succecced in

obtaining some and thus succeeded in importing into North China e consider-

eble quantity of flour which helped to tie over the famine,

(6wa) -~ In the yecr 1941, rumors to the effect that JapAnese—Amerilcan

relations were getting worse with the pessine of the days grew in

intensity. As I head herbored a sincere hupe for the merintenance of neace

between Japan and the United States, it made me feel bad to hear such

rumors. However, I did nnt know snything sbout the contents of the

negotiations, nor did I %now anything about the nolicies decided on by

the Janpenese Qovernment,
|

(6=b) — On the night of October 17, 19/1, Tojo recuested me over the

telephone to Jjoin hia Uabinet as Finsnce Minister., Before giving my renly,

I requested for an interview and called on Tojo at the official resldence

of the War Minister that same night, At The interview, we exchanged

iy T e e o

conversations to the following pur poc e

(1) - To my query as to whether he (Tojo) wns decided on

weeing wer sgainst the United Stabes, he renmlied in the

regacive ~nd stabed he intended Lo continue with the

I, = T ] T ) et

J apanese-Americen negotistions and exort his efforts toward

!
i
£ an emiceble gelllennliCa
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(2) ~ I next stated to him that there was rumor to the

effect that the Supreme Command and the Oabinet did not

- g

always cooperate, thest unless these two organs reach a
more closer relationship there would be a stumbling block
in the negontiations for a auccessful settlement of the

negotiations and nasked him whether he intended to do some=-

thing to close the gap. He replied that he fully understood

my deep concern and that he would work toward a more

sluset ralatisneting | |
(3) = I told him there was a tendency to adopt reform

policies based on the so—called ideology, that we should

forget the ideology sand adopt policies in keeping with the

time snd needs of the country, I asked hls opinion on this

matter and his reply was he felt the same a3 1 did,

I was quite satisfied with the interview, but I left hils residence
without giving my reply, The public rumar at thet time was that the
Army wes especlally pronounced in its asttitude towards the United States
end I was greatly relieved to learn that Tojo planned to continue with
the negotiations snd try to settle the disnutes amicably. The second

point had an importent connection in the maintenance of nesce and the

third poilnt wes an assurance that dangerous policies, both domestic and

foreign, were to be avolded., 1 felt that I should join the Cabinet and
do what I could to help steer the Sate to a peaceful landing. Late that
some night Tojo telephoned for my reply so I consented %o join his

Cabinet,

(6—c) - Befdre joining the Oebinet, I had no relations with Tojo.

—

If I remember correctly, I met him only once. Even after I Joined the

i 1§ Cabinet, our contacts were solely officlals We had no sociel relationshio.

i
I '.« '_
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(6-d) — After jobring the Tojo Cabinet, I dic everything within
my power to avold war, I reallzed the goal ¢l my efforts should be the
suscessful culmingtion of the naegobiniions, [Howeviy, “he mrcvalling

- -“11.'

cirsunstences of the time wore moatly nmgaingu the suecessiui seltloment
of the nezotietions and I realimed the necesslty of working toareras the
preventicn of war even if the nezot1aticns zovld nob rescn setticment,

There were two causes for a nosziole wa™s

The first was the militrry wressure ol tne ﬂwﬁ? Somers snd the second
was the eccnomic presswre by thase poweraso

The embargo on vital materlale plieued on “enan by the Allied Powers
was a big blow to Javare Of all the izawrted materials, o1l was the
most eriticsl probiem, Japan orodnzed herdly any o)1l and without
imported oll she could rnhk malntain her netional defense, 1 felt that
even if the imsort of ollL from the United 8tates and the Dutch Yast
Indies should not be rimewed duc tu tlie feilure of th2 neaotiatlons, 18-
aome othe» source of o'l ecnuld be found, it vould be a biez factor in
the prevention of werse I, therefore, cuggessed a wlran for the manufacture
of synthetic oill and a plrn to buy oll from ncardby Kerth Karafulo and
1f necessary and if possible buy Nortia Kevatulo. 1 tfully reallzed the
difficulty of my olens, but I felt we must do everything possivie to avoid
a war with the United States, My olans, hnwever, mre turned down &3
being immracticel,

I also recollect that of the conditions in the neentintions, I was
in fevor of equal trade oonertunity nnt only in the Western Pacific, but
in all the Facific arew.

(6-e) ~ At the Ligison Conference nf November 1, 1941 various
important problems were discussed, Proposal to commence war immedistely

was brought up, but thias wroposal did not meet with favor, For the

settlement of the Japanese-American negntintions, the "Ko" and the
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"Otsu!' plans were discussed, The conference was unanimous in the ooinion

that Jagan should give in ae much as popeiblie in order Lo setlle the

disputcs, The rrevsacl by She Sumrcre Somaand, howanee, plunged the
& r ; ’

confevrence in%o gn extrene dlfficuliy. Sae peepesal of the Cawrene

Command we4s YIL: by the enl of Noveubor the negoliations did not show

a posaibility of a settlanient we shelld be ready to decide on wer and
with thad in nind there 1a need of ccumencing wrezavatlons nov. “Jaoan
faces a crisis’ stated tle Swwene Turmand in stoanet of its wroposnl,
"Due to the military and econcals wressares vy Lhe filied Povers, If the .

negotiaticns remain ungettled and we (rift slong as we are; the defenalve |

power of Japan in the Weatern Pacific iu comrarison with that of Ghe
Allied owers will day by day der*,.v, Te v411 reanch a eritizal point
if we go glong as we are vntil after Decemlier, 1If mﬁ-aré then nttacked
or there arises a necossity of wazing a wer in egelf-Celenye Janan vill
be so weak by then that the Zuyprame Ceommand wlll not Lo able to accent
the responsibility of national Jdefense, We must wak: vy our minds te
decide on wer before the nrﬁortune momeat is lost 2nd with thet in mind
we should decide on a wrepsvetlon for wer.®
Accordinz to the &shove pronosal, fallnre of the negotiatlions meant

war, Discussions drageed on until sfter nidnighs ¢ such pcints as
whether 1% wes not nnssibls to gn on »ithout eoing to war even if the

- negoﬁiatinna remain unsebtled »nd vhether or not wagline a war meant
extreme dcnger to Japard, As for me, it was ny c¢esire to go aleng as 1t
was without war, even if the negotintions remained tuschiled, but ther

was no way of bringing this about,

g — e
-

The Supreme Command wss resoonsible for national defenss and it was

not possible to just oppose its pronosal, However, to give assent to the

- _:‘.Wi’W

i i . proposed meant making the possibility of wer that much greater, 1 was .-

. B : in an extremely difficult posiSion. I fully reslized whet sufrering i
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war would mean that we should try to avoid it Af at all nossible.

My first trin to Eurooe was made a yesr and several months after the
Armistice, of the First World Wer, but I became fully aware of the horrors
of war., The horrors of war were especirlly visible in the defeated countries,

but for the people and the governments of the countries which won the war

* there was also suffering, I'uaw-ﬁhe battlefield and the wide devastations
and the horrors of war sank into my bones, The China Incident had
been going on for a long time and the people were feeling the effect of
1t., Needless to say, if a war agelnst the United States should break out
3t would greatly add to the sufferings of the nennle,
The Supreme Command insisted that there was a chance for victory
1f war was sterted at an opportune time, however, the Navy Branch of the

Supreme Command had predlcted that should the war drag on for over two

years the outcome would be uncertain, There was the possibility that the
wer might drag on for a lnng period and should Japan lose after n
protracted war she would suffer more than if she did not go to war at ell.
aon if the war was a defensive war, For the above reason, I felt I could
not then and there give my assent to the Supreme Oommand's pronosal and
insisted we should glve the matter further consideratien, The Suvreme
Commaend replied thet the matter called for immediate decision, otherwise
1+ could not assume responsibility for national defense, I argued
.atrongly against making an immediate decision and was finally given an

opportunity to consider the matter for annther day, Togo also-made the
= .

game reservationg

|
?_

Returningﬁhome from the Lisisen Conference, I spent a restless night
pondering over the matter, A decision on the mending oroonsal was not
a decision to wage war, but it meant war would be highly nrobable if the
Jepanese—Aneriosn negotiations were not settled by the end of November
and I wanted to avold war if at atl possible, Thinkine over the matter,

however, 1 came %o the concluslon, regardless of whether the issue in
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question was good or bad, circumstance did net nermit me to stop it, 1If

I opposed it, there was nothing I could do exceot to resign, I felt

that if I resigned, the effect, both at home and abroad, would be unfavor-

L]
-
[ 4
-

able towards the settlement of the Japanese-Ameriean negotiations and thus
aggravate the possibility of a war between the United States and Janan,

. That much was clear,

Next morning Tojo telephened me twice for my renlys I believed that

further delay on my nart weuld only asgravate the nending issue so I
renlied that I was not opposed to the nropdsal before the conference
yesterday, but sincerely hoped for an amicable settlement of the negotia-
tions,

(6=f) = The Hull Note of November 26 was a big blow to »ll, Javan
could not accept the terms and the Foreipgn Minister explained there was
little room for reeconsideration on the part of the United States, The
question at issue was whether to commence hostilities or drift aleng
with the disputes unsettled, The Supreme Command was of She opinisn Shat
it could not accept responsibility for national defense if hostilities

| were not couwueuced at once. If the United States shewed the least
T compromising attitude, there might be a way of continuing the negotiations
even by altering the terma of the "Ko" or the "Otsy" plans, but the Full
Note indicated that ;ettlement was not pessible. In view of the condi-
tlons, & decislon to wage war in self-defense was inevitable,

Japan was embarking on a perilous war, whether geod or bad, If the
Finance Minister had reslened, the effect teo the general nublic would have
been extremely great. The nublic would have internreted the resirnation

to mean that financially and economically, Janan was not in a nosition to

fight the war sucoessfully, thet the Finanee Minister resigned because he 13
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felt.' the burden too great for the natien te bear, When it eames to

natienal finance, the feeling of the peanle is esnecially imnortant, If
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the people &re made to lose confidence it will breed a feeling of

uncertainty and thus might become a cause for defeat, I was against the

'war, but I could not think of increasing the dancers that Japzn faced,

I felt i1t my duty to cerry out my resnousibility,

(6—3)*— The decision to wage war was declded at the Imperial Conference

of December 1, 1941, but hope that the war might be averted, though dim,

was not given un, I nressed and obteined at the Lisison Conference the

Suoreme Command!s agreement that

the outbreak of skirmishes if the negotiatinnsg reached a noint where

settlement was possible,

(6<h) = I do not recall that the renly tn the Hull Note of

November 26 was ever discussed at any nf the meetineg I attended, Liaison

or Cabinet, I was of the oninion the matter was comnetently handled
by the resnonsible officlels. The prosecution has charged that a

decleration of war was discussed at the Privy Council meating of

December 8, 1941, A declaration of war was discussed at that meeting, but

it ves an Imperial Rescrint on the declaration of wer accreased to the

Japenese necnle,

(6-1) — War oneration plens were never discussed at the Liaison

Conferences or at the Cebinet meetinga, I was not consulted about the

Peerl Harbor attack or eny other attack, nor was I ever informed about

such attacksibeforehand.

(7a) = I shall next renly to the other countsi 37 to 46, 51, 52 and

53.

It was my sincere desire to avoid war and I 414 everything in my

nowver to do so, but the conditiny

N8 arainst me were tao strong, My assent

for war wss ineviteble, Boviever, T f1rmly believed we were fiehting g

Ior our very eviatence,
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As to the attack priar to formal notification in violation of
International Treaty, I did not know such a olen exlsted and not knowing
about it, I could not have stopned. 1t, Furthermore, the Jenanese Government
did not have such a oplan,

As to the acts of atrocilty and other acts in violation of the law of
land warfare, I had no connection with them whatsoever., In Janan the
Supreme Command existed as An independent organ from the Cabinet and ve,
civillan members of the Cabinet were not informed beforehand or consulted
on plans and oreperations for battles, Furthermore, we, civilian members
of the Cebinet, had no ovower to command or stop a battle, We had no
volce in the choice of ecommanders nf the froy end Navy, I, st least, was
not even informed sbout the acts nf atrocity, eilther officially or
otherwise. Nnthing sbout the acts of atrncity was mentinned in the nress
or radio, I wra not even informed sbout the protests fron foreign
countries, I was of the impression the war was being fought fairly,

(7-0) = As to the trestment of nrisoners of war, I was nnt informed
nor consulted sbout it either in the Cabinet meetings or elsewhere, nor
wag I informed about the vrotests from foreign countries, It was said
that in previous wars Japan hed accorded good treatment to prisoners of
war. Concerning the trestment of nrisoners of wer during the Pacific
War, I was not in a position to even dream that 1ll-treatment was being
accorded the orisoners of wsor, T did not even hear of rumors that
prisoners of war were being illutrenfpd. The press and radio made no
mention of it,

(7-¢) = As to Counts 45, 46 end 47, I have touched on them in the
China Incident “hase,

(8) = 1I resirned from the Tojo Cabinet on February 29, 1944 at the

request of Premier Tojn, By the venr 1945, it becane claer thet Japan

] 5
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was facing défeat. The suffering of the neonle due ehiefly ta the air
raids was extremely nainful and I deenly felt my nolitical resmponsibility

. the people. On August 11, I learned that the Government had declded

L] . =

> to accent the terms of the Potsdam Declaration, Feeling deeoly my
nolitical resoonsibility to the Ymmeror and the neonle, I made un my mind
to resign all marks of honar which Fis Majesty was graciously nleased to
confer upon me (the privileges of my former nost as a Minister of State
specially granted me court rank) order of MWa»its, and become a plain citlzen
and remain in the background in the futwe, However, as a private citlzen,
I felt I should do everything I could for the veoole and if circumstances

permitted, do my small nart in the prevention of a bad inflation which

wns sure to follow the war., I felt that we vho were concerned with finance

should bear the responsibliity of maeintaining financial stability,

On this 25th day of September 1947

at TOKYO,

DRYPONENTs  F(YA, OKINORI s (seal)

— — ——

I, TAKANO, TSURUQ hereby certify that the above

—— _-’

statement was sworn by the Deponent, who affixed his signature and seal

thereto in the onresence of this wiltness.

On the same date at TOKYO
WITN®ESS: TAKANO, TSURUO (Seal)

]

OATH
In accordance with my conscience I swear to tell the whole truth

withholding nothing and adding notlhitm

KAYA, OKINORT _(Senl)
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THE UNITED STATES OF AMWRICA, et al %

- Vs p—

ARAKI, S&dao, et al

with the procedure followed in my country, I hereby depose as followss

I, KAIA, Okinorl, attended practically 21l the Liaison Conferences up
to the decision for war., I attended also all the Liaison Conferences held
after the decision for war was made, excent when otherwlse incon®¥enienced,

Prior to my time, the Minister of Finance did not attend Lialson
Conferences and I have not been told the reason why I, as Finance Minister,
who was not a regular member, was asked to attend the meetinga, At the time
1 Joincd the Cabinet I hed exchanged views with the Premier oéithe efforts
to be made to settle the Japanese~Americen negotistions and on the question
of cooperation between the Cabinet and the Supreme Command and I have
thought this might have been the reason for my being asked to attend the
meetings.

In my recollection, subject matters within the jurisdiction of the
Minlistry of Finance were never discussed, The 6eciaionaLof the Liaison
Conferences did not control the Cabinet meetines,

(1) = The Liaison Conference was egtablished for the nurnose of

enabling the Supreme Command and the Cabinet to get together
for discussions. There is no law or Imperial Ordimance
specifying its establishment and it had no nower of making
a decision,

(2) —rImportantrmatters'within the jurisdiction of the Cabinet discussed

at the Lialson Conference wore submitted to the Cabinet meetings

for discussion and decision, In such instances the understanding

reached at the Liaison Conferences were generally sdopted.

—
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(3) At the Lierison Conferences subject matters coming under the

-

- o —

- direct jurisdiction of the Premier or matters under the
jurisdiction of the Foreign, War and Navy Ministry were generally i
discussed, Whenever matters coming under the jurisdliction of
other Ministers came up, such Ministers were asked to attend
the meeting for discussions, or understanding was reached by
gsome other method and when an unanimous agreement was reached

’ the matter was submitted to the Cabinet for decision.

(4) - At the Csbinet meetings matters submitted by the Minister

having jurisdiction or matters which the Minister having jurls-—
diction approved were generally passed without oppositien.
There are hardly any cases in which a major change was made. In
case & major opvosition or a basic change in the subject matter
was made, the Minister having jurisdiction or the Minister Raking
the objection had to resign his post, When any opposition to
a proposal wes exvected, it was customary to iron out the differ-

ence smong the Ministers concerned before the pronosal was Subs

mitted to the Cabinet meeting. I do not know of any case
whereby the decision of the Lialson Conference controlled the
Cabinet decision,

(5) - At that time the Army and the Nevy held strone volitical power
and had absolute control over certain matters submitted by them
or approved by them. Any ooposition by any of the other

Ministers did not carry weight,

g T wish to point out next that the Liaison Conference was not the
Supreme Orgen for the prosecution of the war,

Matters such ast When, where and under whaﬁ method a battle was to be
held, transportation and movement of soldlers, commanding officers, etc,

that pertained to war strategy were never discussed at the Lialson Confer-

ences, nor was the Conference informed about such matters. They were
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consldered secret matters of the Suprcrc .iv..s The Conference was not
informed about any new implements of war, nor about the total strength
of the Army and Nrvy. The Conference did receive reports on battles, but
when I think about them now, there were great discreoancies betweén the
reports and the actual facts, The reports receilved were generslly the same
as those reported in the newsoaners,

As stated above, the Conferenfe did not discuss matters nertaining to
the armed forces, nor received fectual revorts on battles nor knew how
much materials the Army and Navy had in stoclk,

On this 26th day of Sentember 1947

At TOKYO, | .
DRPCI™ Tt KAYA, Okinori (Seal)
I, TAKANO, Tsuruo hereby certify that the abave statement was

worn by the Devonent, who affixed his signoture and sesl thereto in the
presence of this vitness,
